

April 2, 2018

PROCEEDINGS

Lordstown Village Council Regular Meeting

(WHEREAS, the regular meeting before the Lordstown Village Council commenced on Monday, April 2, 2018, at 6:10 p.m. and proceedings were as follows:)

(Lord's Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag)

MAYOR HILL: Bill, if we could have roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mayor Hill?
MAYOR HILL: Present.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
MR. BOND: Here.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Present.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Present.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: Present.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
MR. SHEELY: Present.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
MR. REIDER: Present.
MR. BLANK: Clerk Blank, present.
Treasurer, George Ebling?
MR. EBLING: Here.
MR. BLANK: Vito Abruzzino?
ATTY. ABRUZZINO: Present.
MR. BLANK: Police Chief Brent Milhoan?
CHIEF MILHOAN: Present.
MR. BLANK: Fire Chief Travis Eastham?
(NO RESPONSE — ABSENT.)
Planning and Zoning, Economic Development, Kellie Bordner?
MS. BORDNER: Present.
MR. BLANK: Parks, Buildings, Grounds, Street Commissioner, Dale Grimm?
MR. GRIMM: Present.
MR. BLANK: Recreation, Marty Gibson?
MRS. GIBSON: Here.
MR. BLANK: Board of Public Affairs?
(NO RESPONSE — ABSENT.)
Municipal Engineer, Chris Kogelnik?
MR. KOGELNIK: Present.
MAYOR HILL: I'll entertain a motion to excuse Chief Eastham. He told me earlier today he had another obligation and asked to be excused.
MR. LIMING: So moved.
MAYOR HILL: Moved by Liming. Second?
MR. BOND: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Second Bond. Comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
All in favor?
COUNCIL: Aye.
MAYOR HILL: Opposed?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

April 2, 2018

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.
 I'll entertain a motion for adoption of the agenda.

MRS. JONES: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Jones. Second?
 MR. LIMING: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Liming. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.
 MAYOR HILL: Opposed?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.
 I'll entertain a motion for disposal of the minutes of the public hearing held March 19, 2018.

MR. SHEELY: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Sheely. Second?
 MR. RADTKA: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Radtka. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.
 MAYOR HILL: Opposed?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.
 I'll entertain a motion for disposal of the minutes for the regular meeting held March 19, 2018.

MR. BOND: So moved.
 MR. REIDER: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Bond; second Reider. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.
 MAYOR HILL: Opposed?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.
 I'll entertain a motion for payment of the bills.

MR. RADTKA: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Radtka. Second?
 MR. SHEELY: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.
 MAYOR HILL: Opposed?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

April 2, 2018

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.

Mayor's report. I have two appointments for the Rec. Department and two appointments for Dale Grimm's department for approval this evening.

I did have a lot of reports, but I'm going to wait. I haven't heard anything from the Home Goods Company. I'm just going to sit and wait and see what happens there. They're supposed to be getting in touch. They are reviewing. There seems to be a lot of stuff on Facebook. Don't believe, maybe, ten percent of it. A lot of it is opinion, and a lot of it is inaccurate. That's all for the Mayor's report.

Is there a Clerk's report?

MR. BLANK: Just that we're having a public hearing at the next meeting at 5:30. We have one more Ag. District.

MAYOR HILL: Is there a Solicitor's report?

ATTY. ABRUZZINO: No report, Mr. Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Is there a Treasurer's report?

MR. EBLING: No report.

MAYOR HILL: Board of Trustees of Public Affairs report?

MR. PLATT: No report.

MAYOR HILL: Village Engineer's report?

MR. KOGELNIK: I have a couple things to report on, Mayor. Number one, we will be ready in about two weeks to advertise the Phase 2 warning system project. We're nearly done with the design phase.

And on the Highland Avenue sanitary sewer project, we are at 25 percent complete on the preliminary design, which entails most of the collection system work on the northern half. On the southern half, we're setting ourselves up for that connection with the interceptor sewer, but we will not do that until we've had our meeting with Bob's committee and we get their blessing for that. We do have a couple meetings coming up with Bob's committee and with the B.P.A. to discuss some other water and sewer matters, but that's all.

Are there any questions?

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Chris?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

MR. KOGELNIK: Thank you.

MAYOR HILL: Thank you. Special reports. Police Chief Milhoan?

CHIEF MILHOAN: Yes, Mr. Mayor. I submitted my monthly report for March. If you have any questions, I'll answer them.

MAYOR HILL: Any questions for Brent?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

Chief Eastham is excused.

Planning and Zoning Administrator and Director of Economic Development, Kellie?

MS. BORDNER: No report, Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Kellie?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

Parks, Grounds, Buildings, Street Superintendent, Mr. Grimm?

MR. GRIMM: Yes, Mr. Mayor. We have the two appointments, as you stated. I'd appreciate your support on that.

Also, we advertised the wind turbines I believe in the

April 2, 2018

Cleveland Plain Dealer and the *Farm and Dairy*. The bids are due April 30 and will be open at 10:00. So, hopefully, we can get that moving and get them out of the way.

MAYOR HILL: Any questions for Dale?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Recreation, Marty?

MRS. GIBSON: No report.

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Marty?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Bill, do we have any correspondence this evening?

MR. BLANK: No correspondence, Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Public remarks. If you'd like to make a public remark, after I acknowledge you, please come to the microphone and give your name and address so we can get it recorded in the minutes correctly. Public remarks?
(NO RESPONSE.)
Hearing none, are there any Council remarks?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Hearing none, committee reports. Finance, Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA: Yes, Mr. Mayor. I have no report other than we have one, two, three, four—seven pieces we'd like to see passed tonight.

MAYOR HILL: Any questions for Ron?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Parks, Buildings and Grounds, General Improvements, Streets and Sidewalks, Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES: We just have the one piece of legislation on this evening, and we would like to see that passed so that they can go ahead and prepare the bid specs with the county for our paving for this year.

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Karen?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Public Safety and Police, Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER: Yes, Mr. Mayor. We have one Resolution and three Ordinances this evening that we'd like to see passed. That's all. Thank you.

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Don?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Public Safety, Fire and EMS, Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY: No report tonight, Mr. Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Howard?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Public Utilities, Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND: Yes, Mr. Mayor. As Chris was talking about, we do have a Utilities meeting next Monday at 1:30 if anybody is interested.

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Bob?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Recreation and Planning, Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: No report.

MAYOR HILL: Questions for Lamar?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Bill, first piece of legislation, please.

April 2, 2018

MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, **A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE VILLAGE OF LORDSTOWN TO EXPEND PUBLIC FUNDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF ENTERTAINING POTENTIAL BUSINESSES AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?

MRS. JONES: Yes, Mr. Mayor. I'd like to make a motion to amend this. I've had a lot of comments from the public, and a lot of people contacted me regarding this saying why are we doing it in the first place? I said, well, you should have somebody that is able to buy some water and some refreshments and things like that when potential businesses are coming into the area. But most of the people said that—I guess the timing is not real good on this right now I suppose is the way to put it. But they'd like to see in Section II and Section III after the word "locate" "in properly zoned areas" put in both of those sections. That's the motion I'm making.

MAYOR HILL: Is there a second to that motion?

MR. BOND: I'll second that. I think it deserves a hearing.

MAYOR HILL: Comments?

MR. RADTKA: Yes, Mr. Mayor. I'd just like to make a comment. This did come up at our Finance meeting last Monday. Mrs. Jones brought it up to us. I kind of agree with the timing thing of some of the things that's been going around because of Home Goods. I personally don't have a problem with it the way it's been in the past. I did ask if we have any abuse of it in the past, and I was told we did not. So, I think if we want to look at it in the future, but right now being this is up for passage and has already been brought up twice before, I'm in support to just pass it. If we want to review it later, we'll do it later. That's my opinion.

MR. BOND: How long has it been since we've had something like this in effect?

MR. RADTKA: I'm not sure. Bill, do you know how long it's been on the books for an expenditure for the Mayor?

MR. BLANK: Last one, I believe, was '16.

MR. BOND: So there has been none since 2016.

MR. BLANK: I didn't say that, Bob. The last one I know was '16. I don't know before that.

MR. BOND: Okay.

MR. BLANK: Actually, I don't think there was because I believe the auditors brought something up is why that was brought up in '16.

MR. BOND: Okay.

MAYOR HILL: If Council would oblige me, I'd like to have a comment on this. But when there's legislation on the floor, I'm not supposed to speak.

MR. RADTKA: Does Council have a problem with the Mayor making a comment?
(NO OBJECTIONS.)

MAYOR HILL: You know, this is basically for water, some supplies. I really don't think Mrs. Jones has got that many calls unless they were initiated by her. I think it's time that she gets over being petty. She's been coming after me for about the last year or two on several petty issues. You know, I have not

April 2, 2018

abused this. I haven't taken people out. There's been times I've taken people out on my own nickel if they happen to come into town. You can't spend this on alcohol. You can't spend this—if somebody comes in—if they come in, you can't restrict well, where are you going to build? I think, Karen, I think you're being petty as you have been for the last year or two. Get over the last couple elections. Whether that election be Council President, the first meeting of this year; whether it be that I did not appoint you to Planning and Zoning Administrator's job, which you asked me for.

There's a couple others. It's getting a little bit old. Now, whatever Council wants to do, that's fine, but I'm getting a little bit tired of the pettiness. That's all I have to say.

MRS. JONES:

I'd like to make a comment in response to that. I have had—I can't tell you how many phone calls I've had regarding this after the second meeting when this was read. After the first meeting, I got a few phone calls and responses from people who were in the audience. And I said, well, you know, this is something that we need on the books if he's going to be able to buy water or soda or anything else for prospective business. Sometimes you have long meetings and you do need some kind of refreshments. I don't see problem with that. But these people out here are the people who elected me to serve. And when they ask me a question and they ask me to do something for them, that's what I'm going to do. And that's all I have to say about that.

MAYOR HILL:

There's a motion on the floor and a second. Bill, can we have—are there any other comments?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

Can we have roll call on this, please.

MR. BLANK:

Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND:

For or against the motion?

MRS. JONES:

To amend.

MR. BLANK:

To amend. Karen's motion.

MR. BOND:

Yes.

MR. BLANK:

Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES:

Yes.

MR. BLANK:

Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING:

No.

MR. BLANK:

Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA:

No.

MR. BLANK:

Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER:

No.

MR. BLANK:

Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY:

No.

(VOTE: 2, AYE; 4, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL:

Motion does not pass. Are there any other comments or motions on this?

MR. RADTKA:

Motion to suspend the rules.

MAYOR HILL:

Motion to suspend the rules by Mr. Radtka. Is there a second?

MR. SHEELY:

Second.

MAYOR HILL:

Second by Mr. Sheely. Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK:

Mr. Sheely?

April 2, 2018

MR. SHEELY: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
MR. REIDER: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
MR. BOND: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules. Is there a motion to adopt?
MR. REIDER: So moved, Mr. Mayor.
MAYOR HILL: Moved by Reider. Second?
MR. LIMING: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Second by Liming. Comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
MR. REIDER: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
MR. SHEELY: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
MR. BOND: No.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: No.

(VOTE: 4, AYE; 2, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 4, ayes; 2, nays. Motion carried. Resolution 2-2018. Next please.
MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, **A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF CHARLES C. LAWRENCE, JR. J/S DARLENE E. LAWRENCE, RESIDENTS OF 7461 PALMYRA ROAD, S.W., WARREN, OHIO 44481 FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND LOCATED AT PALMYRA ROAD IN AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**
MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
MR. RADTKA: Motion to suspend.
MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Radtka. Second?
MR. LIMING: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Second by Liming. Roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.

April 2, 2018

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules.
 Motion to adopt?
 MRS. JONES: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Jones. Second?
 MR. LIMING: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second Liming. Comments?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 3-2018.
 Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, A
**RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF
 BRUCE CONSTANTINE TRUSTEE AND NANCY
 CONSTANTINE TRUSTEE, RESIDENTS OF 100
 LAKEVIEW STREET, LAKE MILTON, OHIO 44429
 FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND LOCATED AT
 HALLOCK YOUNG ROAD AND LYNTZ
 ROAD/HALLOCK YOUNG ROAD IN AN
 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND DECLARING AN
 EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 MRS. JONES: Motion to suspend.
 MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Jones. Second?
 MR. SHEELY: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

April 2, 2018

MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules.
 Motion to adopt?
 MR. SHEELY: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Sheely. Second?
 MR. BOND: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Bond. Comments?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 4-2018.
 Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, A
**RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF
 DONNA J. SCHRADER, RESIDENT OF 6071
 HIGHLAND AVENUE, S.W., WARREN, OHIO 44481
 FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND LOCATED AT
 HIGHLAND AVENUE IN AN AGRICULTURAL
 DISTRICT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 MR. RADTKA: Motion to suspend.
 MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Radtka. Second?
 MR. SHEELY: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?

April 2, 2018

MR. BOND: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYES; 0, NAYS; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carries to suspend the rules.
Motion to adopt?
MR. LIMING: So moved.
MAYOR HILL: Moved by Liming. Second?
MR. BOND: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Second Bond. Comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
MR. REIDER: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
MR. SHEELY: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
MR. BOND: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 5-2018.
Next, please.
MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, A
**RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF
DEBORAH S. JOINER, RESIDENT OF 494 CARSON
SALT SPRINGS ROAD, WARREN, OHIO 44481 FOR
PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND LOCATED AT
CARSON SALT SPRINGS ROAD IN AN
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.**
MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
MRS. JONES: Motion to suspend.
MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Jones. Second?
MR. RADTKA: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Second by Radtka. Roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
MR. BOND: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
MR. SHEELY: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
MR. REIDER: Yes.

April 2, 2018

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules. Is there a motion to adopt?

MR. BOND: So moved.

MAYOR HILL: Moved by Bond. Second?

MR. REIDER: Second, Mr. Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Second Reider. Comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 6-2018. Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, A **RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF ROBERT W. KRISHER, JR., RESIDENT OF 1405 TAIT ROAD, S.W., WARREN, OHIO 44481 FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND LOCATED AT TAIT ROAD IN AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?

MR. SHEELY: Motion to suspend the rules.

MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Sheely. Second?

MR. LIMING: Second.

MAYOR HILL: Second Liming. Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

April 2, 2018

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules. Is there a motion to adopt?
 MR. RADTKA: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Radtka. Second?
 MR. BOND: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Bond. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 7-2018. Next, please.
 MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, A
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF FLORENCE F. SIGLIN, RESIDENT OF 728 STATE ROUTE 534, NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 44444 FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND LOCATED AT ROUTE 45 LORDSTOWN VILLAGE IN AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.
 MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 MRS. JONES: Motion to suspend.
 MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend by Jones. Second?
 MR. SHEELY: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules. Is there a motion to adopt?
 MR. LIMING: So moved.

April 2, 2018

MR. REIDER: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Moved by Liming; second Reider. Comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
MR. SHEELY: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
MR. REIDER: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
MR. BOND: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 8-2018.
Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Public Safety and the Police Department Committee
For Emergency Passage, **A RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF LORDSTOWN
TO EXTEND A NOTICE OF CONDITIONAL OFFER
OF EMPLOYMENT TO AARON M. CARMICHAEL
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
MR. REIDER: Motion to suspend.
MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Reider. Is there a second?
MR. SHEELY: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
MRS. JONES: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
MR. BOND: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
MR. REIDER: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
MR. SHEELY: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
MR. RADTKA: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules.
Motion to adopt?

MR. RADTKA: So moved.
MR. BOND: Second.
MAYOR HILL: Moved by Radtka; second Bond. Comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Roll call, please.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.

April 2, 2018

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 9-2018.
 MR. BLANK: From Planning and Zoning and Recreation Department
 Committee For Emergency Passage, **A RESOLUTION IN
 SUPPORT OF THE JEAN ANN SMITH SUMMER
 FUN DAYS TO BE HELD THE MONTH OF JULY
 2018 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 Hearing none, I declare this Resolution has had its first.
 Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Planning and Zoning and Recreation Department
 Committee For Emergency Passage, **A RESOLUTION IN
 SUPPORT OF THE LORDSTOWN COMMUNITY
 DAY PICNIC TO BE HELD JUNE 24, 2018, AND
 DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 Hearing none, I declare this Resolution has had its first
 reading. Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Streets, Sidewalks, Public Parks, Buildings, Grounds,
 and General Improvement Committee For Emergency
 Passage, **A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
 TRUMBULL COUNTY TO DEVELOP AND
 ADVERTISE BID SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE
 VILLAGE OF LORDSTOWN'S 2018 PAVING
 PROGRAM AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 MR. SHEELY: Motion to suspend the rules.
 MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Sheely. Second?

MRS. JONES: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Jones. Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES: Yes.

April 2, 2018

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules.
Motion to adopt?

MR. RADTKA: So moved.

MAYOR HILL: Moved by Radtka. Second?

MR. SHEELY: Second.

MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Comments?

MRS. JONES: Yes. The reason we're asking for this to be passed emergency is because the county needs this so they can proceed with bid specifications and advertising.

MAYOR HILL: Any other comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Resolution 10-2018. Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Planning and Zoning and Recreation Department Committee For Emergency Passage, **AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RESTATING ORDINANCE NO. 29-2017 CREATING VARIOUS SEASONAL, PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT POSITIONS FOR THE SUMMER 2018 RECREATION PROGRAM, SETTING WAGES FOR THE SAME AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Hearing none, I declare this Ordinance has had its first reading. Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Board of Public Affairs for Emergency Passage, **AN ORDINANCE CREATING TEMPORARY, SEASONAL, PART-TIME SUMMER POSITIONS WITHIN THE WATER DEPARTMENT OF THE VILLAGE OF LORDSTOWN FOR THE 2018 SEASON AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?

MRS. JONES: Motion to suspend.

MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Jones. Second?

MR. LIMING: Second.

MAYOR HILL: Second by Liming. Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: Yes.

April 2, 2018

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules. Is there a motion to adopt?
 MR. BOND: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Bond. Second?
 MRS. JONES: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Jones. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Ordinance 15-2018. Next, please.
 MR. BLANK: From Finance Committee For Emergency Passage, **AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CLERK TO TRANSFER THE SUM OF \$174.54 FROM THE UNCLAIMED MONEY FUND INTO THE GENERAL FUND AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**
 MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 MR. RADTKA: Motion to suspend.
 MR. LIMING: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Radtka; second Liming. Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

April 2, 2018

MRS. JONES: Yes.
MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
MR. LIMING: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules. Motion to adopt?

MR. SHEELY: So moved.

MAYOR HILL: Moved by Sheely. Second?

MR. REIDER: Second, Mr. Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Second by Reider. Comments?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Ordinance 16-2018. Next, please.

MR. BLANK: From Public Safety and the Police Department Committee For Emergency Passage, **AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 4-2018 WHICH HAD AUTHORIZED THE SALE OF TWO (2) GETAC S400 LAPTOPS TO THE BAZETTA POLICE DEPARTMENT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?

MRS. JONES: Motion to suspend.

MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend by Jones. Second?

MR. REIDER: Second, Mr. Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Second by Reider. Roll call, please.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?

MR. SHEELY: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?

MR. LIMING: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?

MRS. JONES: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?

MR. REIDER: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?

MR. BOND: Yes.

MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?

MR. RADTKA: Yes.

April 2, 2018

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules.
 Motion to adopt?
 MR. SHEELY: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Sheely. Second?
 MR. BOND: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Bond. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Ordinance 17-
 2018. Next, please.
 MR. BLANK: From Public Safety and the Police Department Committee
 For Emergency Passage, **AN ORDINANCE
 AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF ONE (1) GETAC S400
 LAPTOP TO THE HARTFORD POLICE
 DEPARTMENT FOR THE TOTAL SUM OF \$300,
 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**
 MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 MR. REIDER: Motion to suspend.
 MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Reider. Second?
 MR. SHEELY: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules.
 Motion to adopt?
 MR. RADTKA: So moved.

April 2, 2018

MAYOR HILL: Moved by Radtka. Second?
 MR. SHEELY: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Sheely. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Ordinance 18-2018. Next, please.
 MR. BLANK: From Public Safety and the Police Department Committee For Emergency Passage, **AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF LORDSTOWN TO SELL TO CAPTAIN TERRY CAMPBELL HIS DUTY HAND GUN WEAPON FOR THE SUM OF ONE DOLLAR (\$1.00) AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.**

MAYOR HILL: Comments or motions?
 MR. SHEELY: Motion to suspend the rules.
 MAYOR HILL: Motion to suspend the rules by Sheely. Second?
 MRS. JONES: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Jones. Roll call, please.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to suspend the rules. Is there a motion to adopt?
 MR. BOND: So moved.
 MAYOR HILL: Moved by Bond. Second?
 MR. RADTKA: Second.
 MAYOR HILL: Second by Radtka. Comments?
 (NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
 Roll call, please.

April 2, 2018

MR. BLANK: Mr. Bond?
 MR. BOND: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mrs. Jones?
 MRS. JONES: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Liming?
 MR. LIMING: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Radtka?
 MR. RADTKA: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Reider?
 MR. REIDER: Yes.
 MR. BLANK: Mr. Sheely?
 MR. SHEELY: Yes.

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

MAYOR HILL: 6, ayes; 0, nays. Motion carried to adopt. Ordinance 19-2018.
 Is there any old business Council would like to discuss at this time?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

Hearing none, new business. I have a couple appointments for the Rec. Department. Instructors: Nichole Peterson. Substitute Instructor: Toby Simmons. And take Breanne Zublena off as an instructor for the Yoga class. I'll entertain a motion for those three.

MR. RADTKA: So moved.

MAYOR HILL: Moved by Radtka. Second?

MR. LIMING: Second.

MAYOR HILL: Second by Liming. Comments?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.

MAYOR HILL: Opposed?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.

A motion for summer help from Dale Grimm to have William Casper and Rose Horner appointed to the upcoming season. Both have worked with us previously. I'll entertain a motion to have them appointed.

MRS. JONES: So moved.

MR. SHEELY: Second.

MAYOR HILL: Moved by Jones; second by Sheely. Comments?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.

MAYOR HILL: Opposed?

(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.

That's all I have for new business. Is there any other new business? Mr. Radtka?

April 2, 2018

MR. RADTKA: Yes, Mr. Mayor. I'd like to make a motion that we not exceed \$75 for the remainder of the calendar year 2018 for coffee and supplies.

MR. BLANK: Authorizing me.

MR. RADTKA: Authorizing Bill to purchase it.

MAYOR HILL: Everybody heard the motion for no more than \$75 for Bill to purchase coffee and supplies for meetings. Is there a second?

MR. REIDER: Second, Mr. Mayor.

MAYOR HILL: Second by Reider. Comments or questions on the motion?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)
All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.

MAYOR HILL: Opposed?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried.

Is there any other new business at this time?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

Hearing none, are there any additional public remarks at this time?
(NO RESPONSE.)

Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to adjourn.

MR. RADTKA: So moved.

MAYOR HILL: Moved by Mr. Radtka. Second?

MR. LIMING: Second.

MAYOR HILL: Second by Liming. I'd like to thank everybody for coming out this evening. All in favor?

COUNCIL: Aye.

MAYOR HILL: Opposed?
(NO RESPONSE FROM COUNCIL.)

(VOTE: 6, AYE; 0, NAY; 0, ABSTAINED.)

Motion carried. Meeting adjourned.

(WHEREAS, THE REGULAR MEETING BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF LORDSTOWN COUNCIL ADJOURNED AT 6:40 P.M.)

_____ Mayor
 _____ Clerk

STATE OF OHIO)
)
 COUNTY OF TRUMBULL)

I, Sharon K. Vigorito, a Notary Public, within and for the State of Ohio, do certify that the foregoing meeting before the Lordstown Village Council was written in the presence of witnesses and by me transcribed. I further certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript to the best of my abilities.

 Sharon K. Vigorito, Notary Public
 My commission Expires May 9, 2022